
 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, OX28 1NB 
www.westoxon.gov.uk Tel: 01993 861000 

 

 

 

Thursday, 28 November 2024 

 

Tel: 01993 861000 

e-mail: democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk 

 

LOWLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

You are summoned to a meeting of the Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee which will be held 

in Committee Room 1, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, Oxfordshire OX28 1NB on Monday, 

9 December 2024 at 2.00 pm. 

 

 
Giles Hughes 

Chief Executive 

 

 
To: Members of the Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

 

Councillors: Michael Brooker (Chair), Andy Goodwin (Vice-Chair), Julian Cooper, Steve  Cosier, 

Rachel Crouch, Phil Godfrey, Nick Leverton, Andrew Lyon, Michele Mead, David 

Melvin, Andrew Prosser, Sarah Veasey, Adrian Walsh and Alistair Wray 

 

Recording of Proceedings – The law allows the public proceedings of Council, Executive, and 

Committee Meetings to be recorded, which includes filming as well as audio-recording.  

Photography is also permitted. By participating in this meeting, you are consenting to be filmed. 

 

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings please let the 

Democratic Services officers know prior to the start of the meeting. 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/


 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence  

To receive any apologies for absence from members of Sub-Committee. 

The quorum for the Sub-Committee is 4 members. 

 

2.   Declarations of Interest  

To receive any declarations of interest from members of the Sub-Committee on any 

items to be considered at the meeting. 

 

3.   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 10) 

To approve the minutes of the previous meeting, held on Monday 11 November 2024. 

 

4.   Applications for Development (Pages 11 - 38) 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development, details of which are set out in the attached 

schedule. 
 

Recommendation: 

To determine the applications in accordance with the recommendations of the Business 

Manager. 

 

The recommendations contained in the following pages are all subject to amendments in 

the light of observations received between the preparation of the reports etc and the 

date of the meeting. 

 

Pages  Application No. Address Planning Officer 

13-18 24/01341/FUL 138 Abingdon Road, Standlake Rebekah Orriss  

19-22 24/01559/LBC 3 Church View, Bampton Tara Hayek  

23-32 24/01726/HHD Farmside, Sutton Lane, Sutton Clare Anscombe 

33-38 24/01727/LBC Farmside, Sutton Lane, 

Sutton 

Clare Anscombe 

 

 

4.1   24/01341/FUL 138 Abingdon Road, Standlake. 

 

 

4.2   24/01559/LBC 3 Church View, Bampton. 

 

 

4.3   24/01726/HHD Farmside, Sutton Lane, Sutton. 

 

 

4.4   24/01727/LBC Farmside, Sutton Lane, Sutton. 
 

 

5.   Applications Determined under Delegated Powers (Pages 39 - 48) 

Purpose: 

To inform the Sub-Committee of applications determined under delegated powers. 

 

Recommendation: 

1. That the report be noted by the Sub-Committee. 

 

Page 2



 

6.   Appeal Decisions (Pages 49 - 50) 

Purpose: 

To inform the Sub-Committee of any appeal decisions. 

 

Recommendation: 

1. That the report be noted by the Sub-Committee. 

 

 

(END) 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Minutes of the meeting of the 

Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

Held in the Committee Room 1, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, Oxfordshire OX28 

1NB at 2.00 pm on Monday, 11 November 2024 

PRESENT 

Councillors: Michael Brooker (Chair), Andy Goodwin (Vice-Chair),  Julian Cooper, Steve  

Cosier, Rachel Crouch, Phil Godfrey, Nick Leverton, Andrew Lyon, Michele Mead, David 

Melvin, Andrew Prosser, Sarah Veasey, Adrian Walsh and Alistair Wray. 

Officers:  Andrea McCaskie (Director of Governance), James Nelson (Principal Planner) and 

Rebekah Orriss (Planner), Andrew Brown (Head of Democratic and Electoral Services), Anne 

Learmonth (Democratic Services Officer).  

Other Councillors in attendance:  Nil.  

 

62 Apologies for Absence  

There were no apologies for absence. 

63 Declarations of Interest  

24/01341/FUL 138 Abingdon Road, Standlake. 

Councillor Cosier declared he was the ward member but was not pre-determined.  

24/01979/FUL Land South East of Stone Place, Church Road, North Leigh. 

Councillor Veasey declared she was the ward member but was not pre-determined.  

64 Minutes of Previous Meeting  

Councillor Steve Cosier asked for his name to be added to the list of attendees in the minutes 

as he was present at the meeting on Monday 14 October 2024.  

Councillor Walsh proposed that the minutes of the previous meeting held on Monday 14 

October 2024, be agreed by the Sub-Committee as a true and accurate record. This was 
seconded by Councillor Cosier, was put to the vote and was agreed unanimously by the Sub-

Committee.  

The Sub-Committee Resolved to: 

1. Agree the minutes of the previous meeting held on Monday 14 October 2024 as a true 

and accurate record.  

 

65 Applications for Development  

66 24/01341/FUL 138 Abingdon Road, Standlake  

Rebekah Orriss, Planning Officer introduced the application for change of use of land to 

increase domestic curtilage along with erection of 2m high boundary fence.  

Geoff and Vicky Ling, applicants, spoke in support of the application.  

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

11/November2024 

 

 

 

The Planner‘s presentation clarified the following points: 

 The application was to seek permission for the change of use to land to increase 

domestic curtilage along with the erection of 2m high boundary fence.  

 The proposal had been amended to reposition the fence further back from the 

highway.  

 The application had been brought to the Sub-Committee as the application had been 

called in by the Ward Member and the Parish Council had objected.   

 The Mulberry School occupied the land to the south a of the lane. There was a public 

right of way across the front of the site along Shifford Lane.  

 The applicant proposed to plant native hedges however a condition had been proposed 

to agree details of the native hedge mix.  

 The fence has been erected in connection with two approved dwellings on the adjacent 

land, the access for these dwellings was approved to connect to Shifford Lane.  

 The application was recommended for approval.   

 

The Chair then invited the Sub-Committee to discuss the application, which raised the 

following points.  

 Permission to remove shrubs and trees was not needed as the trees were not under a 

tree preservation order and were not within a conservation area.  

 With the fence being moved it enclosed land which included a ditch. Members were 

concerned about access to utilities. The Officer clarified that there is an approved 

surface water drainage scheme concerning the ditch and in connection with the 

approved dwellings on the adjoining land. The fence is unlikely to create access 

problems to the ditch as the fence could be moved if required.   

 The size and scale of the fence was not in keeping with the surrounding area. The fence 

did not compliment the other properties fences as it was of a different design.  

 Safety concerns were raised regarding securing the adjacent site during the 

construction of two approved dwellings, for the sake of  children who attended the 

Mulberry School. 

  

Councillor Andrew Lyon proposed that the application be approved in line with officer’s 

recommendations.  

This was seconded by Councillor Adrian Walsh and was put to the vote with 3 votes for the 

proposal, 6 votes against and 1 abstention, the vote was not carried.  

Councillor Cosier proposed the application be deferred for a site visit by the Sub-Committee.   

This was seconded by Councillor Prosser and was put to the vote 6 for the proposal and 4 

against. The vote was carried.  

 

Page 6



Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

11/November2024 

 

 

The Sub-Committee Resolved to: 

1. Defer the application for a site visit by Members, to be held at 12.00pm on Monday 9 

December 2024.  

  

Councillors Mead, Leverton and Crouch arrived during this item and as such did not take part 

in the determination of this application.  

67 24/02162/FUL 59 Barrington Close Witney  

Rebekah Orriss, Planning Officer introduced the application for the change of use of resident’s 

land from amenity to residential and erection of timber boundary fencing (retrospective).  

The Planner‘s presentation clarified the following points: 

 The application was before the Sub-Committee due to objections from the Town 

Council.  

 The site did not lie within any areas of special designation.  

 The application was retrospective for a change of use of amenity land to residential and 

the erection of a timber boundary fence.  

 The fence would form a logical compliment to the surrounding area and was of high-

quality design.  

 The previous application for an extension to the property had been dismissed at the 

Appeals stage but that this application had also included the change of use proposed 

and the inspector had commented that neither the fence nor the change of use harm 

the character and appearance of the area.  

 A parking space had been enclosed with a set of timber gates.  

 A condition was proposed to remove Class E permitted development rights in order 

to maintain the openness of the application site.  

 The application was recommended for approval subject to conditions.   

 

The Chair then invited the Sub-Committee to discuss the application, which raised the 

following points.  

 Clarification on ownership of the land. The Planning Officer confirmed that ownership 

of land was not a consideration, it is the applicant’s responsibility to contact the 

landowners directly regarding the application.  

 There was a car parking space within the existing curtilage of the dwelling. The oldest 

photo of the site was from the last 6 years.  

Councillor Michele Mead proposed that be approved in line with officer’s recommendations.  

This was seconded by Councillor Walsh and was put to the vote 6 for the proposal, 4 against 

and 1 Abstention . The vote was carried.  

The Sub-Committee Resolved to: 

1. To approval the application in line with Officer recommendations. 

Page 7



Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

11/November2024 

 

 

 

68 24/01979/FUL Land South East of Stone Place, Church Road  

James Nelson, Senior Planning Officer, introduced the application for the creation of a new 

access to field for agricultural purposes, along with laying of a concrete hardstanding and 

installation of double gates set back from highway. 

The Senior Planner’s presentation clarified the following points: 

 The application was before the Sub-Committee due to objections from the Parish 

Council.  

 The application was for the creation of a new access to the field for agricultural use, 

with hardstanding concrete and installation of double gates.  

 The site was not within any area of special designation. 

 Oxfordshire County Council Highways had not objected to the application.  

 The application was in keeping with the agricultural use of the area.  

 The application was recommended for approval. 

The Chair then invited the Sub-Committee to discuss the application, which raised the 

following points.  

 Access to the ditch would be covered in conditions.  

 The land where the site could be accessed at another point was not owned by the 

applicant.  

 The ownership of land was not a planning consideration. The implications of the 

application and planning policy would be considered when the application was before 

the Sub-Committee.  

 Drainage and flooding concerns would be covered by condition as there was not a 

change of use of the site.  

Councillor Prosser proposed that the application be approved in line with Officer 

recommendations. 

This was seconded by Councillor Crouch, was put to the vote, and was agreed unanimously. 

The Sub-Committee Resolved to: 

1. Approve the application in line with Officer recommendations.  

 

69 24/02391/FUL Home Farm Kelmscott  

James Nelson, Senior Planning Officer introduced the application for the demolition of 

agricultural barns and erection of two dwellings. 

Ed Grant, spoke in support of the application. 

The Senior Planner’s presentation clarified the following points: 

 The Parish Council strongly supported the application.  

 The application was for the demolition of agricultural barns and erection of 2 dwellings.  

Page 8



Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

11/November2024 

 

 

 The proposed dwellings would not follow the pattern of development and would be 

taller than surrounding buildings resulting in dominance of the street scene and would 

not form a logical compliment to the existing scale and pattern of the surrounding area. 

 There was no objection for West Oxfordshire District Council Drainage Officer. The 

existing access for the site served large agricultural vehicles, even though the future 

occupiers would be reliant on a private car, the access was considered acceptable with 

a low impact on the highway network.  

 The adverse impacts on heritage harm outweighed the benefits. The provision of two 

dwellings would result in a very minor impact upon overall housing delivery.  

 The Senior Planning Officer recommended the report for refusal.    

The Chair then invited the Sub-Committee to discuss the application, which raised the 

following points.  

 Clarification was sought on whether the land should not be built on. The design and 

scale of the proposed dwellings extended beyond the footprint of existing buildings.  

 The local parish council and neighbours were in strong support of the application. 

 The orchard situated to the north of the site was part of the proposal and would 

contribute to biodiversity net gain, the future owners would have to maintain the 

orchard.    

 The current barn buildings were considered to be poor in quality, unsightly in 

appearance and of no historical value to the surrounding area. The Sub-Committee 

viewed the removal of the existing buildings as a sufficient benefit to outweigh the 

harms set out by officers.  

 

Councillor Andy Goodwin proposed that the application be refused in line with the Officer’s 

recommendations.   

This was seconded by Councillor Steve Cosier and was put to the vote. There were 4 votes in 

favour of the proposal, 8 votes against and 1 abstention.  The vote was not carried.  

Councillor Michele Mead proposed that the application be approved against Officers 

recommendations.   

This was seconded by Councillor Adrian Walsh and was put to the vote. There were 10 votes 

in favour of the proposal, 2 votes against and 1 abstention.  

The Sub-Committee Resolved to: 

1. Approve the application against Officer’s recommendations and delegate authority to 

the Senior Planning Officer in consultation with the Chair, to agree conditions and 

resolve the outstanding biodiversity matters. 

 

70 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers  

The report giving details of application determined under delegated powers was received, 

explained by Planning Officers, and noted by the Sub-Committee. 

 

Page 9



Lowlands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

11/November2024 

 

 

71 Appeal Decisions  

The report giving details of appeals decisions was received, explained by the Planning Officers 

and noted by the Sub-Committee.  

APP/D/24/3346034  

24/D00269/HHD Pen-Lea, Arknell Avenue, Carterton, Oxon OX18 3BS. 

The appeal was dismissed however the application was part retrospective.  Clarification was 

sought on where the garden room had been taken down. The application had been referred to 

the enforcement team.  

 

The Meeting closed at 3.41 pm 

 

CHAIR 

Page 10



 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

  

LOWLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

Date: 9th December 2024 

 

 
REPORT OF THE BUSINESS MANAGER-DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development details of which are set out in the attached schedule. 

 

Recommendations: 

To determine the applications in accordance with the recommendations of the Business Manager. 

The recommendations contained in the following pages are all subject to amendments in the light of 

observations received between the preparation of the reports etc and the date of the meeting. 

 

List of Background Papers 
 
 

All documents, including forms, plans, consultations and representations on each application, but 

excluding any document, which in the opinion of the ‘proper officer’ discloses exempt information as 

defined in Section 1001 of the Local Government Act 1972.        

                                                 

Please note that: 

1. Observations received after the reports in this schedule were prepared will be summarised in a 

document which will be published late on the last working day before the meeting and available 

at the meeting or from www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings  

 

 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings


Item Application Number Address Officer 

 

1 

 

24/01341/FUL 138 Abingdon Road, Standlake 

 

Rebekah Orriss 

 

2 

 

24/01559/LBC 3 Church View, Bampton 

 

Tara Hayek 

 

3 

 

24/01726/HHD Farmside, Sutton Lane, Sutton 

 

Clare Anscombe 

 

4 

 

24/01727/LBC Farmside, Sutton Lane, Sutton 

 

Clare Anscombe 

 

Page 12



 

Application Number 24/01341/FUL 
Site Address 138 Abingdon Road 

Standlake 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

OX29 7RN  
Date 27th November 2024 

Officer Rebekah Orriss 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Standlake Parish Council 

Grid Reference 439242 E       202793 N 

Committee Date 9th December 2024 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Change of use of land to increase domestic curtilage along with erection of 2m high boundary fence. 

 

 

 

Page 13



Applicant Details: 

Mr and Mrs Geoffrey and Victoria Ling 

138 Abingdon Road 

Standlake 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

OX29 7RN 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish Council  Standlake PC objects as follows: 

 

1. Three mature trees on the land in question were felled without 

approval before the initial development proposal for the end of their 

garden was submitted earlier this year. 

2. The new fence was erected before they submitted a retrospective 

application for curtilage over land that is well outside their garden and 

is still separated from it by a long-established fence. Their application 

for curtilage over this land has no basis for approval as it has never 

been maintained by them, contrary to what they state in their 

application. The new fence has changed completely the rural 

character of this stretch of Shifford Lane and is not acceptable to the 

owners of the Mulberry Bush School that faces it. 

3. Moving the fence back by 1m will have no material effect upon its 

negative impact on the surroundings.   
 

OCC Highways The proposal, if permitted, will not have a significant detrimental 

impact (in terms of highway 

safety and convenience) on the adjacent highway network 

Recommendation: 

 

Oxfordshire County Council, as the Local Highways Authority, 

hereby notify the District Planning 

Authority that they do not object to the granting of planning 

permission   
 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 Two comments objecting to the proposal were received the full statements can be found on the 

West Oxfordshire Planning website but are both summarised as follows: 

 

• the proposal is across the water main leading to Longwood House, access is required for 

maintenance;  

• there are electrical lines that need to be accessed by BT and Gigaclear; 

• concerns about the drainage ditch being filled in. 

 

One comment of support was made:  

 

• The sensitivity, understanding and support by the village and our neighbours to the work of The 

Mulberry Bush has been and remains of enormous value to the charity. Consequently, we have 

Page 14



been very grateful for the neighbourliness offered by the occupants over the years and with 

regard to this proposed development. The safety and welfare of the children at the school 

remains our greatest concern. Any measures that the owners take to support us in keeping the 

children safe during and after the build are welcomed. 

 

We do not object to the development and have been grateful of being kept informed of the progress 

and plans for the site by the owners. This has included flexibility around certain works and the 

movement or operation of heavy / noisy machinery. We have not been approached for comment by 

any other party or neighbour in any regard in relation to this matter and have not objected. We do 

ask that access to the services that feed our school site are not compromised. 

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1. On the opposite side of Shifford Lane is The Mulberry Bush School where a number of young 

children live on a full-time basis. The school has expressed concerns that securing the construction 

site needs to be a priority to ensure the children are not at risk of any danger. Whilst the children 

mainly occupy the area within the school perimeter it is a well-known fact it is not unusual for some 

of them to explore the area beyond the perimeter and we have had unexpected visits from them on 

a number of occasions in the past. 

 

3.2. Many people walk their dogs along Shifford Lane, often off the lead. It is necessary for the safety of 

the dogs and construction workers to keep the dogs out of the construction site. 

 

3.3. Neighbours both from the Mulberry Bush school and along Shifford Lane have expressed concern 

that both during and after the permitted construction of the houses the lane itself may become 

congested or obstructed by vehicles delivering materials to the site or by other vehicles belonging to 

site workers. By creating a parking and unloading area inside the fence and clearly preventing such 

vehicles from being parked part on and part off the lane we are preventing such congestion and 

allowing our neighbours unfettered access to their properties. 

 

3.4. Many people use Shifford Lane to walk out to other lanes and areas of countryside in the 

surrounding area. If the fence was erected further away from the tarmac surface of the lane these 

walkers will park their cars on the land to the side of the lane. This will cause congestion and result 

in mud being drawn onto the lane which during wet weather will create a dangerously slippery 

surface on Shifford Lane, a hazard for walkers and vehicles alike. 

 

3.5. We need to maintain the security and privacy of our property, the fence will prevent those walking 

along Shifford Lane from looking into our house and garden and will prevent anyone from trying to 

take our dogs. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS4NEW High quality design 

T4NEW Parking provision 

NPPF 2023 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

 

Page 15



5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Background Information 

 

5.1. This application seeks planning permission for the 'Change of use of land to increase domestic 

curtilage along with erection of 2m high boundary fence'. The application site is an area of grass verge 

along Shifford Lane, Standlake.  

 

5.2. The proposal has been amended, to reposition the fence further back from the highway. 

 

5.3. The verge is adjacent to a site approved for two dwellings under ref. 20/03451/FUL. The proposal 

has involved enclosing the verge with 2m high close-boarded fencing in order to bring the land into 

residential use associated with the two approved dwellings.  

 

5.4. The site does not lie within any areas of special designation. There is a public right of way across the 

front of the site along Shifford Lane. The Mulberry Bush School occupies the land to the south of the 

lane. 

 

5.5. The application is before Members due to a deferred decision to account for a site visit. The 

application was originally before Members as officers' views differ from those of the Parish Council, 

the application was also called in by Councillor Cosier.  

 

Planning History 

 

5.6. The red-line application site does not have any planning history itself, however the fence has been 

erected in connection with development approved on the adjoining site which has the following 

consent:  

 

• 20/03451/FUL - Construction of two, 4 bed dwellings - approved; 

• 24/00884/S73 - Variation of condition 2 of planning permission 20/03451/FUL to allow design 

changes to Plot 1 -approved. 

 

Principle of Development 

 

5.7. Local Plan Policy OS2 gives the general principles for new development the most relevant point sot 

this application are that all development should: 

 

• Form a logical complement to the existing scale and pattern of development and/or the 

character of the area; 

• As far as is reasonably possible protect or enhance the local landscape and the setting of the 

settlement/s; 

• Not involve the loss of an area of open space or any other feature that makes an important 

contribution to the character or appearance of the area. 

 

5.8. As such the principle of development is supported following is the further assessment in regard to 

the impact on the design and siting, highway safety and residential amenity. 

 

 

 

 

Page 16



Siting, Design and Form  

 

5.9. The change of use of the land has involved the erection of a 2m close boarded fence. This has been 

placed in two sections allowing for an access in the middle, each section is approximately 15m long. 

 

5.10. Currently the fence is quite close to the highway, however the applicants have amended the 

proposal to include repositioning the fence a further 1m back from the highway.  

 

5.11. Shifford Lane is a narrow lane that leads off from the main road through Standlake. The lane has is 

characterised by leafy vegetation on the south side, with boundaries and accesses set back on the 

northern side with grass verges between boundaries and the highway.  

 

5.12. In light of the above, officers consider the proposal to reposition the fence to mean that a grass 

verge is retained along the highway in a manner commensurate with the existing pattern of 

boundaries alongside the north side of Shifford Lane.  

 

5.13. The applicant also proposes to plant native hedging to the front of the fence which officers 

consider is in line with policies EH3 and EH4, this exact mix could be secured by a condition.  

 

5.14. Officers consider that the form and design complies with policies OS2 and OS4 of the West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031. 

 

Impact on Neighbouring Amenity 

 

5.15. Given the nature of the development officers do not consider that the change of use of the land 

nor the erection of the fence would have a significant impact on neighbouring amenity.  

 

Highways 

 

5.16. OCC Highways have been consulted on the application as the land is owned by OCC highways, 

they have raised no objections with regard to highways safety and convenience. On this basis, the 

scheme is considered acceptable and complies with policy T4 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan. 

 

Public Right of Way 

 

5.17. Shifford Lane is part of the public right of way system. Officers consider that the application site 

forms a small part of the views of the right of way and in light of the existing residential uses along 

the lane, officers do not consider the repositioned fence to have a significant impact on the 

enjoyment of the public right of way. 

 

Other Matters 

 

5.18. Officers note the comments from the parish council regarding works to trees on the land. The 

trees were not protected, and the site is not in the conservation area so the removal of the trees did 

not require permission from the LPA.  

 

5.19. While safety is not directly a planning consideration, representations from a representative of the 

neighbouring school have shown support for the fence with regard to safety during the construction 

period.  

 

Page 17



Conclusion 

 

5.20. Taking into account the above matters the proposal is considered acceptable on its merits and 

complies with Policies OS2, OS4, T4 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, the relevant 

paragraphs of the NPPF and the West Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016. 

 

6 CONDITIONS 

 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the 

date of this permission. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 

1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

2. That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

3. The development shall be constructed with the materials specified in the application. 

 

REASON: To ensure that the development is in keeping with the locality and for the avoidance of 

doubt as to what is permitted.  

 

4. Within 6 months of the date of this decision details of the proposed native hedge shall be submitted 

to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The scheme shall be implemented as 

approved within 12 months of the commencement of the approved development or as otherwise 

agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and thereafter be maintained in accordance with 

the approved scheme. In the event of any of the trees or shrubs so planted dying or being seriously 

damaged or destroyed within 5 years of the completion of the development, a new tree or shrub of 

equivalent number and species, shall be planted as a replacement and thereafter properly 

maintained.  

 

REASON: To ensure the safeguarding of the character and landscape of the area. 

 

 

Contact Officer: Rebekah Orriss 

Telephone Number:  

Date: 27th November 2024 

Page 18



 

Application Number 24/01559/LBC 
Site Address 3 Church View 

Bampton 

Oxfordshire 

OX18 2NE 

Date 27th November 2024 

Officer Tara Hayek 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Bampton Parish Council 

Grid Reference 431310 E       203203 N 

Committee Date 9th December 2024 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Internal and external alterations to include replacement of 5 existing windows of varying ages, 3 of 

which are double glazed, with matching higher thermal quality units and replacement of existing single 

glazed windows to house frontage with higher thermal quality single glazed windows. 

 

 

Page 19



Applicant Details: 

Mr Alistair Wray 

3 Church View 

Bampton 

Oxfordshire 

OX18 2NE 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Conservation And Design 

Officer 

No objections subject to a condition D33 for windows details.  And, 

an informative for the type of windows we could support for this 

listed building: 

The replacement windows should be of timber, the joinery detailed to 

match traditional window types.  The double-glazing should be as thin 

as possible (c.16mm or less) ideally with black spacer bars between 

the sheets of glass. The window should have properly detailed glazing 

bars (with the glazing bars framing up the individual panes of glass, 

rather than sandwiching unbroken sheets of glazing, or being 

sandwiched between unbroken sheets of glazing).  For further advice 

see: West Oxfordshire Design Guidance: : 

https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/ksqgvl4b/10-design-guide-

windows-and-doors.pdf  
 

Parish Council No Comment Received.  
 

Historic England Please refer to conservation specialist  
 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 No third-party representations received.  

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 A Listed Building Consent Application justification statement has been submitted, which states: 

 

3.2 'The proposed works (replacement windows) in no way change the outward appearance to the 

building (or affect the interior), and attention has been paid to these considerations in retaining 

identical window replacement units to the front elevation with two single glazed units, and like-for-

like replacement units to the rear extensions where the five existing windows are all in poor 

condition and three of these five are existing defective double glazed units. Hence, visual impact from 

these works is minimal while effort has been made both to conserve the building's overall appearance 

and enhance its thermal efficiency and future use'. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

OS4NEW High quality design 

EH10 Conservation Areas 

EH11 Listed Buildings 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

Page 20



 

5  PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

5.1 3 Church View is a Grade II listed building formerly one house, now 3 dwellings, dating from the 

17th century with early/mid-18th century wings and small 18th/19th century extension to right.  

 

5.2 Because 3 Church View is Grade II listed, the Local Planning Authority is therefore statutorily 

required to have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building, its setting, and any 

features of special architectural or historic interest it may possess, in accordance with Section 16(2) 

of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.  

 

5.3 Section 16 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that in determining applications, 

local planning authorities should take account of the desirability of sustaining or enhancing the 

significance of heritage assets. In particular, paragraph 205 states that when considering the impact of 

a proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset - such as a Listed Building, 

or Conservation Area - great weight should be given to the asset's conservation (and the more 

important the asset, the greater the weight should be). Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a 

designated heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting), 

should require clear and convincing justification (paragraph 206). Paragraph 208 states that where a 

development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated 

heritage asset, this harm should harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, 

where appropriate, securing its optimal viable use. 

  

5.4 In order to consider the effect of a scheme on the significance of the listed building, there is a need 

to identify that significance.  This application has been furnished with enough information to 

determine this application. 

 

5.5 The works proposed relate to internal and external alterations to include replacement of 5 existing 

windows of varying ages from the 20th century. 

 

5.6 Advice was undertaken prior to this application.  The current application mostly aligns with the 

advice, although further advice has been given regarding the window specifications for this listed 

building.  A window condition will be attached to seek windows that will preserve the character of 

this listed building. 

  

5.7 Officers are of the opinion that the works are remedial and necessary delivering replacement 

window that will help sustain the property in the longer term. This will ensure the protection and 

preservation of this listed building, as well as improve the thermal and environmental conditions. 

 

5.8 Overall, these works would have a positive impact on heritage significance, and therefore considered 

to be a heritage (public) benefit and will secure its optimum viable use for the future. 

 

5.9 Therefore, Officers are satisfied that the works proposed will preserve the essential special 

architectural and historic interest of the listed building in accordance with Section 16(2) of the 1990 

Act. The significance of the designated heritage asset will be sustained, in accordance with Section 16 

of the NPPF.  

 

5.10 Also, 3 Church View is located in Bampton Conservation Area, and Officers are required to take 

account of section 72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as 

amended which states that, with respect to buildings or other land in a conservation area, special 

Page 21



attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving and enhancing the character or appearance of 

that area.  

 

5.11 And the proposed changes will not impact on the Conservation Area thus respecting the special 

qualities and historic context of the Conservation Area in accordance with section 72(1) of the 

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and Section 16 of the NPPF. 

 

5.12 The Local Planning Authority has had special regard to the desirability of preserving the building, its 

setting, and any features of special architectural or historic interest it may possess, and to the 

desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance. The works are considered to 

preserve the special character, setting and significance of the listed building, and of the Conservation 

area. As such, your officers consider that listed building consent should be approved. 

 

6 CONDITIONS 

 

1. The works must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of 

this consent. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation 

Areas) Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 

2. Notwithstanding details contained in the application, detailed specifications and drawings of all 

external windows and doors to include elevations of each complete assembly at a minimum 1:20 

scale and sections of each component at a minimum 1:5 scale and including details of all 

materials, finishes and colours shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority before that architectural feature is commissioned/erected on site. The 

development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  

 

REASON: To ensure the architectural detailing of the buildings reflects the established character 

of the area. 

 

3. All new works and works of making good shall be carried out in materials, and detailed, to 

match the adjoining original fabric except where shown otherwise on the approved drawings. 

 

REASON: To preserve the architectural integrity of the Listed Building.  

 

Notes to applicant 

 

 1 The replacement windows should be of timber, the joinery detailed to match traditional window 

types.  The double-glazing should be as thin as possible (c.16mm or less) ideally with black 

spacer bars between the sheets of glass. The window should have properly detailed glazing bars 

(with the glazing bars framing up the individual panes of glass, rather than sandwiching unbroken 

sheets of glazing, or being sandwiched between unbroken sheets of glazing).  For further advice 

see: West Oxfordshire Design Guidance: : https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/ksqgvl4b/10-

design-guide-windows-and-doors.pdf 

 

 

Contact Officer: Tara Hayek 

Telephone Number: 01993 861666 

Date: 27th November 2024 

Page 22



 

Application Number 24/01726/HHD 
Site Address Farmside 

Sutton Lane 

Sutton 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

OX29 5RU  
Date 27th November 2024 

Officer Clare Anscombe 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Stanton Harcourt Parish Council 

Grid Reference 442110 E       206266 N 

Committee Date 9th December 2024 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Demolition of single storey rear extension and porch, erection of two storey rear extension, conversion 

of outbuilding into a utility room and associated works (amended plans). 

 

Page 23



Applicant Details: 

Mr And Mrs Wallom 

Farmside 

Sutton Lane 

Sutton 

Oxfordshire 

OX29 5RU 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Newt Officer It is considered that the proposed development is unlikely to have an 

impact on crested newts and/or their habitats. However, as the 

development is within the red Impact Risk Zone, as modelled by 

district licence mapping, I recommend that the following informative 

should be attached to planning consent:  

 

The applicant is reminded that, under the Conservation of Habitats 

and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended) and the Wildlife and 

Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), it is an offence to (amongst 

other things): deliberately capture, disturb, injure, or kill great crested 

newts; damage or destroy a breeding or resting place; intentionally or 

recklessly obstruct access to a resting or sheltering place. Planning 

permission for a development does not provide a defence against 

prosecution under this legislation. Should great crested newts be 

found at any stage of the development works, then all works should 

cease, and a professional and/or suitably qualified and experienced 

ecologist (or Natural England) should be contacted for advice on any 

special precautions before continuing, including the need for a 

licence." 

Additionally, the following recommendations are provided to further 

reduce the likelihood of impacts on this species: 

 

• Removal of materials by hand. If any great crested newts are 

discovered during removal of materials, materials should be 

replaced immediately and a suitably qualified ecologist 

contacted prior to works resuming. 

• Any trenches left overnight should be covered or provided 

with ramps to prevent great crested newts from becoming 

trapped. 

• Any building materials such as bricks, stone etc. should be 

stored on pallets to discourage great crested newts from 

using them as shelter. 

• Any demolition materials should be stored in skips or similar 

containers rather than in piles on ground.  
 

Historic England  No comment.  
 

 

 

 

Page 24



Conservation And Design 

Officer 

 Original comments:- 

 

The general idea of this is not too problematic - the extension is 

arguably secondary to the main block, the link avoids the junction 

with the thatched roof, and the design work is tidy and unashamedly 

contemporary. 

 

However, it collides with the pitched roof of the outhouse (against 

our previous advice), and it is still perhaps a little too tall. Also, the 

rooflights are unnecessary, as there is a sizeable window in the gable 

end. 

 

If they addressed these issues, I think it would probably be 

supportable from a Conservation and Design point of view.  
 

Parish Council  Objection. 

 

POLICY OS4: High quality design. The size of the extension does not 

conserve or enhance the existing buildings and features of historic, 

architectural, and designated and non-designated heritage assets in 

this area.  

 

POLICY OS2: Locating development in the right places: The 

proposed extension is not proportionate and appropriate in scale and 

massing in relation to existing properties and other extensions in the 

ribbon development. The proposed extension does not enhance the 

local landscape and setting of the existing settlements. The application 

is contrary to NPPF paragraph 135; in that it is not sympathetic to 

local character and history, including the surrounding built 

environment and landscape setting.  
 

Conservation And Design 

Officer 

 Reconsultation response - no objection. 

 

Subdued lead or zinc cladding would be preferable to copper for the 

first-floor link.  
 

OCC Highways  No objection.  
 

 2 2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 One letter of objection has been received from an interested party to the initial application 

documents. In summary, the following concerns have been raised: 

 

• Overshadowing and loss of light to neighbouring property 

• Increased fire risk 

• Loss of privacy to neighbouring property 

• Increased noise and disturbance  

• Overdevelopment 

• Loss of character of the area and appearance of the historic group of cottages when viewed 

from the road 

Page 25



• Environmental impact on Great Crested Newts 

• Clarification required under Party Wall Act 1996 

 

2.2 A further letter of objection has been received to the amended plans. In summary, the following 

concerns have been raised: 

 

• Building up the boundary wall and proximity to the existing thatch roof at Mistletoe Cottage and 

lack of distance from the boundary wall for maintenance 

• Overlooking from the proposed rear window onto patio dining area at Mistletoe Cottage 

• Inaccurate Daylight and Sunlight Assessment 

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 In summary, the application is accompanied by a Design, Access & Heritage Statement which makes 

the following points: 

 

• The kitchen extension porch and dormer are all of poor architectural quality and detract from 

the listed building. Therefore, the removal of these will not remove any historical fabric of the 

building. 

 

• The thatch roof will stay untouched. The link will have a glass roof which will make it clear that 

this is a new addition and so make the earlier part of the building legible. Therefore, maintaining 

the historical significance of the building.  

 

• The roof to the extension has been lowered lessening its impact on the existing building and the 

neighbour. The eaves of the proposed extension now lines up with eaves of the slate lean-to 

roof, therefore respecting the form of the existing building.  

 

• The design is modern but very simple in form to avoid detracting from the original house. The 

timber cladding offers a softer finish against the listed building but delineates the historical part 

of the house with the new extension. This helps maintain the historical importance of the house. 

Part of the historical importance of the building is the story it tells of the way homes have 

changed to adapt to the employment and prosperity of the village. With the cottage being 

subdivided to meet the agricultural needs and then turned back into one house and then 

extended as the prosperity of rural areas has increased. 

 

• New openings will be kept as small as possible therefore the historical significance of the 

building will remain. 

 

• The proposals do not extend further back than the extension to Mistletoe Cottage and the 

historic part of Mistletoe Cottage is to the front of the property.  

 

• The side facing glazing to Mistletoe Cottage includes double doors from the kitchen/dining 

room, which has its main set of glazing facing the main part of the garden to the north. On the 

first floor, the window serves part of the bedroom which has its main source of light from the 

large windows facing down the garden to the north. The ground floor sun room which is in the 

centre of the building is already surrounded by two storey buildings which form Mistletoe 

Cottage, with the majority of the source of light coming from the glazed roof. The proposed 

extension to Farmside will not affect the light coming into this roof. The extension has been 

designed with the roof affectively starting from the garden wall and pitching away from the 

Page 26



neighbour and is Northeast facing so will not block any additional light than what the original 

cottage is already doing.  

 

• The main part of Mistletoe's garden is to the north of their extension which the proposed 

extension to Farmside is not close to and will have no impact on this part of the garden. 

 

• A Daylight and Sunlight Assessment has been submitted by Smith Marston Building Surveyors. 

This concludes that the proposed development will have a low impact on the light receivable by 

its neighbouring property and in their opinion, the proposed development sufficiently safeguards 

the daylight and sunlight amenity of the neighbouring properties. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS1NEW Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS3NEW Prudent use of natural resources 

OS4NEW High quality design 

H6NEW Existing housing 

T2NEW Highway improvement schemes 

EH8 Environmental protection 

EH9 Historic environment 

EH10 Conservation Areas 

EH11 Listed Buildings 

EH12 Traditional Buildings 

EH3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

NPPF 2023 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Background Information 

 

5.1 The application relates to an existing two-storey detached, thatched dwelling dating from the 18th 

Century located along Sutton Lane in Sutton.  The dwelling is Grade II Listed (known as 'Pinkhill 

Cottage,' listing number: 1199800) and lies in the Stanton Harcourt and Sutton Conservation Area.  

The proposed development is for the demolition of a single storey rear extension and porch, 

erection of a two-storey rear extension, conversion of an outbuilding into a utility room and 

associated works.  

 

Relevant Planning History 

 

• W74/0746 Kitchen Extension. Approved. 21st November 1974. 

 

• 17/00261/LBC Erection of rear porch (retrospective) Approved. 22nd March 2017. 

 

• 23/03249/HHD Internal and external alterations including: reinstatement of window and stairs, 

removal of dormer window, proposed roof lights, repointing stonework with lime mortar and 

replacement detached garage (amended plans). Approved. 30th January 2024. 

 

Page 27



• 23/03250/LBC Internal and external alterations including: reinstatement of window and stairs, 

removal of dormer window, proposed roof lights, repointing stonework with lime mortar and 

replacement detached garage (amended plans). Approved. 30th January 2024. 

 

5.2 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

 

• Principle of Development 

• Design, Siting, Scale and Visual Amenity 

• Impact on Designated Heritage Assets 

• Impact on Amenity 

• Impact on Ecology 

• Impact on Highways 

• Other Matters 

 

Principle of Development 

 

5.3 The proposed development falls within the curtilage of an existing dwelling and so the principle of 

the development is considered to be acceptable.  

 

Design, Siting, Scale and Visual Amenity 

 

5.4 Policy OS2 of the WOLP (2031) requires all new development to form a logical complement to the 

existing character of the area and be of a proportionate and appropriate scale to its context. Policy 

OS4 relates to high-quality design and states that new development should respect the historic, 

architectural and landscape character of the locality, contribute to local distinctiveness and, where 

possible, enhance the character and quality of the surroundings. It should demonstrate high quality 

design and conserve or enhance areas, buildings and features of historic and architectural significance. 

Policy H6 requires changes to existing housing to respect the character of the surrounding area. 

Chapters 14 and 4 of the West Oxfordshire Design Guide (2016) (Extensions and Alterations) and 

(Local Character) are also particularly relevant. Chapter 4 notes that roofing materials typically 

include Welsh slate, natural stone slate and walling materials include weatherboarding. 

 

5.5 The proposed extension is set down from the ridge of the existing property and has a pitched roof 

form which reflects that of the host dwelling. It has a width of circa 5.7m and is to be clad in timber 

with a slate roof to match slate on the existing rear lean-to extension. It is to be linked with the host 

dwelling by a flat-roof link with a glass roof. Triple glazed grey aluminium sliding doors and windows 

are also proposed. A set of sliding doors is proposed on the north-east elevation and north-west 

elevation as well as a window at first floor level in the rear elevation. The extension is to 

accommodate an additional bedroom and larger kitchen and dining area.  

 

5.6 In terms of its siting, scale and form, the extension is set-back from the existing characterful little red 

brick outbuildings to the rear and set-down from the ridge of the host dwelling. Its eaves align with 

the eaves on the lean-to. Therefore, due to its scale, siting and form, the proposed extension is 

considered to be a proportionate and appropriate to its context and not obscure the character of 

the original property.  

 

5.7 In terms of impact on the character and appearance of the original property, the proposed materials 

largely reflect that of the host dwelling and other surrounding permitted outbuildings, including the 

garage. Whilst the choice of wall material is modern, this will help to clearly express a new chapter in 

Page 28



the story of the property through being clearly differentiated from the original dwelling. However, 

the type and colour of timber cladding has not been specified. The Design Officer has been consulted 

and has no objections to the proposal. Therefore, the proposed development is considered to be 

acceptable in terms of its design, subject to a condition requiring the submission and approval of a 

sample of the cladding prior to the commencement of walling.  

 

5.8 The link and roof of the extension will be partly visible from the street scene, but due to the 

proposed materials, it is considered that this would reflect the character and appearance of the host 

dwelling and surrounding area and so not appear prominent in the street scene. 

 

Impact on Designated Heritage Assets 

 

5.9 The site lies in the Stanton Harcourt and Sutton Conservation Area and the host dwelling is listed. In 

terms of impact on the Listed Building, Officers are required to take account of sections 66 and 72 of 

the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended which states that in 

considering whether to grant planning permission for development which affects a listed building or 

its setting, the local planning authority shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the 

building, its setting and any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 

This is reflected in policy EH11 of the WOLP. In line with section 72(1) of the Act and WOLP Policy 

EH10, your officers have paid special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the 

character or appearance of the CA. 

 

5.10 In terms of impact on the listed building itself, a Heritage Statement has been submitted which 

states that the cottage is an 18th Century thatched cottage which is a good example of a traditional 

house from that time and its original plan form can still be seen today. The thatched roof is a good 

example of vernacular architecture. The cottage was extended in the 19th Century with a lean-to 

extension, which is clearly visible on the east elevation. A flat roof kitchen extension was added in 

the 1960s and a rear porch. The kitchen extension and porch are of poor architectural quality and 

the proposal seeks to remove these.  

 

5.11 The Heritage Statement states that as the proposal would remove existing unsympathetic additions 

to the property and replace these with a more sensitively designed extension which is set down from 

the thatched roof and separated from the original building by a glass roof link, it is considered that 

the proposal would make the earlier part of the building legible. An opening will be created at first 

floor level into the extension, but this will be through the slate roof of the 19th century lean-to 

extension and so no historic fabric will be affected. The Conservation and Design Officer agrees with 

this assessment. Therefore, it is considered that the proposal will preserve the special architectural 

and historic interest of the listed building in accordance with Section 66 of the 1990 Act and the 

significance of the designated heritage asset will be sustained, in accordance with Section 16 of the 

NPPF.  

 

5.12 It is also considered that the proposed development would fall within the setting of several other 

Listed Buildings, including Mistletoe Cottage and Goldenbridge Cottage. Mistletoe Cottage has been 

extended to the rear with the original part of the cottage fronting the road. Goldenbridge Cottage is 

noted for its group value. The link and roof of the extension will be partly visible from Sutton Lane, 

but due to the proposed materials, siting and height of the extension, it is considered that the special 

interest of Mistletoe Cottage and the group of cottages would be conserved. In terms of impact on 

the setting of Goldenbridge Cottage, it is considered that the proposal would enhance the setting of 

this listed building due to the removal of the flat-roof single storey extension and renovation of the 

existing brick outbuilding.  

Page 29



 

5.13 In terms of impact on the conservation area, it is considered that due to its location, form, scale, 

massing, height and external appearance, the proposed development would conserve the linear 

settlement pattern, special historic and architectural interest, character and appearance of this part of 

the Stanton Harcourt and Sutton Conservation Area. 

 

Impact on amenity 

 

5.14 Policy OS2 of the WOLP (2031) states that all new development should be compatible with 

adjoining uses and not have a harmful impact on the amenity of existing occupants. Policy H6 states 

that extensions and alterations to existing dwellings will not unacceptably affect the environment of 

people living in that area. Officers consider that due to the siting of existing and proposed openings, 

intervening garage and existing boundary vegetation, the proposed development would be unlikely to 

have a harmful impact on the amenity of occupants of Goldenbridge Cottage. 

 

5.15 Concern has specifically been raised regarding potential for the proposed development to 

overshadow the neighbouring property (Mistletoe Cottage), particularly along the east facing aspect. 

Officers have carried out a site visit and carefully considered impact on amenity to Mistletoe 

Cottage. A Daylight and Sunlight Assessment by Smith Marston Chartered Building Surveyors has 

been submitted which has been prepared in accordance with the latest BRE guidelines for Daylight 

and Sunlight (2022). These guidelines are widely used to assess the impact of development on 

daylight and sunlight. 

 

5.16 In summary, the report concludes that all neighbouring windows (that have a requirement for 

daylight or sunlight) pass the relevant BRE diffuse daylight and direct sunlight tests and that all 

neighbouring amenity areas also pass the BRE overshadowing to gardens and open spaces test. It also 

concludes that the proposal will have a low impact on the light receivable by its neighbouring 

property and in the opinion of the surveyor, the proposed development sufficiently safeguards the 

daylight and sunlight amenity of the neighbouring property. The kitchen/dining room at Mistletoe 

Cottage includes side facing double doors and a main set of glazing facing the garden to the north so 

is served by a second source of light.    

 

5.17 Due to the height of the extension, positioning of new windows relative to the neighbouring 

property and existing intervening vegetation, it is considered to be unlikely that the proposal would 

lead to significant harm to the occupants of Mistletoe Cottage by way of overbearing or loss of 

privacy. The Council's Environmental Health Officer (Noise & Amenities) has been consulted and no 

objection has been raised, subject to a condition restricting the construction hours to protect the 

amenity of the neighbourhood. However, due to the scale of the works, officers consider that such a 

condition would be unreasonable. Therefore, for the above reasons, it is considered that the 

proposal would be compatible with adjoining uses and unlikely to have a harmful impact on the 

amenity of neighbouring residents so as to warrant the refusal of the application.  

 

Impact on ecology 

 

5.18 In terms of impact on ecology, the site lies in a red area for Great Crested Newts. The Newt 

Officer has been consulted and considers that the proposal is unlikely to have a detrimental impact 

on these protected species and has not raised an objection. Therefore, the proposal is considered to 

be acceptable on ecology grounds, subject to informatives.  

 

 

Page 30



Impact on Highways 

 

5.19 Oxfordshire County Council have been consulted as the relevant Local Highway Authority and 

have not raised an objection on highway safety or parking grounds to the proposal.  

 

Other Matters  

 

5.20 Concern has been raised in representations regarding impact on the boundary wall between the 

property and Mistletoe Cottage, increased fire risk and the contravention of the access to 

Neighbouring Land Act and Party Wall Act. Land ownership, boundary disputes, fire risk and legal 

rights and matters that are controlled under other legislation are not material planning 

considerations and so are not relevant to the consideration of this application. The NPPF (2023) is 

clear that Local Planning Authorities should assume that other regimes will operate effectively and 

not require compliance with other regulatory requirements, such as Building Regulations.  

 

Recommendation 

 

5.21 In conclusion, taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the 

representations of interested parties, the proposed development is considered to comply with 

policies OS1, OS2, OS3, OS4, H6, T2, EH3, EH8, EH9, EH10, EH11 and EH12 of the West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan (2031), the West Oxfordshire Design Guide (2016) and the relevant 

paragraphs of the NPPF (2023). Therefore, the development is recommended for approval, subject 

to the conditions and informatives as set out in Section 6 of this report. 

 

6 CONDITIONS 

 

 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the 

date of this permission. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 

1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

2. That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

3.  All new works and works of making good shall be carried out in materials, and detailed, to 

match the adjoining original fabric except where shown otherwise on the approved drawings. 

 

REASON: To preserve the architectural integrity of the Listed Building.  

 

4. The external walls of the two-storey extension shall be constructed with timber cladding, a 

sample of which shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 

before above ground works commence. 

 

REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area.   

 

 

 

Page 31



 

Notes to applicant 

 

 1 The Local Planning Authority consider that the mandatory requirement of 10% Biodiversity Net 

Gain is not required for this proposal as submitted. 

 

 2 The applicant is reminded that, under the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 

2017 (as amended) and the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), it is an offence to 

(amongst other things): deliberately capture, disturb, injure, or kill great crested newts; damage 

or destroy a breeding or resting place; intentionally or recklessly obstruct access to a resting or 

sheltering place. Planning permission for a development does not provide a defence against 

prosecution under this legislation. Should great crested newts be found at any stage of the 

development works, then all works should cease, and a professional and/or suitably qualified and 

experienced ecologist (or Natural England) should be contacted for advice on any special 

precautions before continuing, including the need for a licence. 

 

Additionally, the following recommendations are provided to further reduce the likelihood of 

impacts on this species: 

 

• Removal of materials by hand. If any great crested newts are discovered during removal 

of materials, materials should be replaced immediately and a suitably qualified ecologist 

contacted prior to works resuming. 

 

• Any trenches left overnight should be covered or provided with ramps to prevent great 

crested newts from becoming trapped. 

 

• Any building materials such as bricks, stone etc. should be stored on pallets to 

discourage great crested newts from using them as shelter. 

 

• Any demolition materials should be stored in skips or similar containers rather than in 

piles on ground. 

 

 

Contact Officer: Clare Anscombe 

Telephone Number:  

Date: 27th November 2024 

Page 32



 

Application Number 24/01727/LBC 
Site Address Farmside 

Sutton Lane 

Sutton 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

OX29 5RU  
Date 27th November 2024 

Officer Clare Anscombe 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Stanton Harcourt Parish Council 

Grid Reference 442110 E       206266 N 

Committee Date 9th December 2024 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Demolition of single storey rear extension and porch, erection of two storey rear extension, conversion 

of outbuilding into a utility room and associated works (amended plans). 

 

Page 33



Applicant Details: 

Mr And Mrs Wallom 

Farmside 

Sutton Lane 

Sutton 

Oxfordshire 

OX29 5RU 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Conservation And Design 

Officer 

 Original Comments 

 

The general idea of this is not too problematic - the extension is 

arguably secondary to the main block, the link avoids the junction 

with the thatched roof, and the design work is tidy and unashamedly 

contemporary. 

 

However, it collides with the pitched roof of the outhouse (against 

our previous advice), and it is still perhaps a little too tall. Also, the 

rooflights are unnecessary, as there is a sizeable window in the gable 

end. 

 

If they addressed these issues, I think it would probably be 

supportable from a Conservation and Design point of view.  
 

Parish Council  Original Comments - objection. 

 

• The size of the extension does not conserve or enhance the 

existing buildings and features of historic, architectural, and 

designated and non-designated heritage assets in this area. 

 

• The proposed extension is not proportionate and appropriate 

in scale and massing in relation to existing properties and 

other extensions in the ribbon development. 

 

• The proposed extension does not enhance the local 

landscape and setting of the existing settlements. The 

application is contrary to NPPF paragraph 135; in that it is not 

sympathetic to local character and history, including the 

surrounding built environment and landscape setting.  
 

Conservation And Design 

Officer 

Reconsultation comments dated 24th October 2024- no objection. 

 

Subdued lead or zinc cladding would be preferable to copper for the 

first-floor link.  
 

Parish Council Reconsultation comments - objection. 

 

POLICY OS4: High quality design The size of the extension does not 

conserve or enhance the existing buildings and features of historic, 

Page 34



architectural, and designated and non-designated heritage assets in 

this area.  

 

POLICY OS2: Locating development in the right places: The 

proposed extension is not proportionate and appropriate in scale and 

massing in relation to existing properties and other extensions in the 

ribbon development. The proposed extension does not enhance the 

local landscape and setting of the existing settlements. The application 

is contrary to NPPF paragraph 135; in that it is not sympathetic to 

local character and history, including the surrounding built 

environment and landscape setting.  
 

Historic England  No comment.  
 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 Two letters of objection have been received from interested parties. In summary, the following 

concerns have been raised: 

 

• Overshadowing and loss of light to neighbouring property 

• Increased fire risk 

• Loss of privacy to neighbouring property 

• Increased noise and disturbance  

• Overdevelopment 

• Loss of character of the area and appearance of the historic group of cottages when viewed 

from the road 

• Environmental impact on Great Crested Newts 

• Clarification required under Party Wall Act 1996 

• Contrary to policy EH2 and E6 as the proposal does not conserve or enhance the intrinsic 

character of the setting or the area and will have an unacceptable impact on neighbouring 

properties 

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 A Design, Access and Heritage Statement has been submitted which, in summary, makes the 

following points: 

 

• The kitchen extension porch and dormer are all of poor architectural quality and detract from 

the listed building. Therefore the removal of these will not remove any historical fabric of the 

building. 

 

• The thatch roof will stay untouched. The link will have a glass roof which will make it clear that 

this is a new addition and so make the earlier part of the building legible. Therefore maintaining 

the historical significance of the building.  

 

• The roof to the extension has been lowered lessening its impact on the existing building and the 

neighbour. The eaves of the proposed extension now lines up with eaves of the slate lean-to 

roof, therefore respecting the form of the existing building.  

 

Page 35



• The design is modern but very simple in form to avoid detracting from the original house. The 

timber cladding offers a softer finish against the listed building but delineates the historical part 

of the house with the new extension. This helps maintain the historical importance of the house. 

Part of the historical importance of the building is the story it tells of the way homes have 

changed to adapt to the employment and prosperity of the village. With the cottage being 

subdivided to meet the agricultural needs and then turned back into one house and then 

extended as the prosperity of rural areas has increased. 

 

• New openings will be kept as small as possible therefore the historical significance of the 

building will remain. 

 

• The proposals do not extend further back than the extension to Mistletoe Cottage and the 

historic part of Mistletoe Cottage is to the front of the property. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS4NEW High quality design 

EH11 Listed Buildings 

EH9 Historic environment 

NPPF 2023 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Background Information 

 

5.1 This application seeks Listed Building Consent (LBC) for the demolition of a single storey rear 

extension and porch, erection of a two-storey rear extension, conversion of an outbuilding into a 

utility room and associated works. The property is a Grade II Listed Building (Listing Number: 

1199800) known as 'Pinkhill Cottage' and lies to the north of Sutton Lane in the village of Sutton and 

lies in the Stanton Harcourt and Sutton Conservation Area. The dwelling is located alongside other 

listed houses which were likely constructed leading to the farm they served, 'Coxs Farm.' The 

original part of the cottage is formed from squared and coursed limestone with the western gable 

now rendered with elements being timber framed. The roof is straw thatch. 

 

Impact upon the Listed Building 

 

5.2 LBC applications must be determined in accordance with section 16(2) of the Planning (Listed 

Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (the Act). Given the relevance of Local Plan Policies 

OS4, EH9 and EH11 to this proposal, these policies and the supplementary guidance contained in the 

West Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (an adopted SPD) are material considerations in this 

assessment, as is the NPPF (December 2023). 

 

5.3 Section 16 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that in determining applications, 

local planning authorities should take account of the desirability of sustaining or enhancing the 

significance of heritage assets. Paragraph 200 requires the applicant to describe the significance of 

affected heritage assets. Paragraph 205 states that when considering the impact of a proposed 

development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, such as a Listed Building, or 

Conservation Area, great weight should be given to the asset's conservation (and the more 

important the asset, the greater the weight should be). Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a 

Page 36



designated heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting), 

should require clear and convincing justification (paragraph 206). Paragraph 208 states that where a 

development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated 

heritage asset, this harm should harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, 

where appropriate, securing its optimal viable use. 

 

5.4 A Heritage Statement has been submitted which states that the cottage is an 18th Century thatched 

cottage which is a good example of a traditional house from that time and its original plan form can 

still be seen today. The thatched roof is a good example of vernacular architecture. The cottage was 

extended in the 19th Century with a lean-to extension, which is clearly visible on the east elevation. 

A flat roof kitchen extension was added in the 1960s and a rear porch. The kitchen extension and 

porch are of poor architectural quality and the proposal seeks to remove these.  

 

5.5 The Heritage Statement states that as the proposal would remove existing unsympathetic additions 

to the property and replace these with a more sensitively designed extension which is set down from 

the thatched roof and separated from the original building by a glass roof link, it is considered that 

the proposal would make the earlier part of the building legible. An opening will be created at first 

floor level into the extension, but this will be through the slate roof of the 19th century lean-to 

extension and so no historic fabric will be affected. The Conservation and Design Officer agrees with 

this assessment. Therefore, it is considered that the proposal will preserve the special architectural 

and historic interest of the listed building in accordance with Section 16 (2) of the 1990 Act and the 

significance of the designated heritage asset will be sustained, in accordance with Section 16 of the 

NPPF (2023). 

 

5.6 A number of concerns raised by the submitted representations are not relevant to the consideration 

of a listed building consent application which is limited to that specified under section 16 (2) of the 

1990 Act.  

 

Other Matters 

 

5.7 In line with section 72(1) of the Act, your officers have paid special attention to the 

desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the CA. In this regard, it 

is considered that due to its location, form, scale, massing, height and external appearance, the 

proposals would conserve the linear settlement pattern, special historic and architectural 

interest, character and appearance of this part of the Stanton Harcourt and Sutton 

Conservation Area. 
 

Recommendation  

 

5.8 In light of this assessment and having paid special regard to the desirability of preserving the building, 

its setting, and any features of special architectural or historic interest it may possess, the works are 

considered to preserve the special character, setting and significance of the listed building. As such, 

your officers recommend that LBC should be granted, subject to conditions as set out in section 6 of 

this report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 37



 

6 CONDITIONS 

 

 

1. The works must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of 

this consent. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation 

Areas) Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 

2. All new works and works of making good shall be carried out in materials, and detailed, to 

match the adjoining original fabric except where shown otherwise on the approved drawings. 

 

REASON: To preserve the architectural integrity of the Listed Building.  

 

 

Notes to applicant 

 

 1 The Local Planning Authority consider that the mandatory requirement of 10% Biodiversity Net 

Gain is not required for this proposal as submitted. 

 

 2 The applicant is reminded that, under the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 

2017 (as amended) and the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), it is an offence to 

(amongst other things): deliberately capture, disturb, injure, or kill great crested newts; damage 

or destroy a breeding or resting place; intentionally or recklessly obstruct access to a resting or 

sheltering place. Planning permission for a development does not provide a defence against 

prosecution under this legislation. Should great crested newts be found at any stage of the 

development works, then all works should cease, and a professional and/or suitably qualified and 

experienced ecologist (or Natural England) should be contacted for advice on any special 

precautions before continuing, including the need for a licence. 

 

Additionally, the following recommendations are provided to further reduce the likelihood of 

impacts on this species: 

 

• Removal of materials by hand. If any great crested newts are discovered during removal 

of materials, materials should be replaced immediately and a suitably qualified ecologist 

contacted prior to works resuming. 

 

• Any trenches left overnight should be covered or provided with ramps to prevent great 

crested newts from becoming trapped. 

 

• Any building materials such as bricks, stone etc. should be stored on pallets to 

discourage great crested newts from using them as shelter. 

 

• Any demolition materials should be stored in skips or similar containers rather than in 

piles on ground. 

 

Contact Officer: Clare Anscombe 

Telephone Number:  

Date: 27th November 2024 

Page 38



DELGAT 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS  

 

Application Types Key 

 

Suffix 

 

 Suffix  

ADV Advertisement Consent LBC Listed Building Consent 

CC3REG County Council Regulation 3 LBD Listed Building Consent - Demolition 

CC4REG County Council Regulation 4 OUT Outline Application 

CM County Matters RES Reserved Matters Application 

FUL Full Application S73 Removal or Variation of Condition/s 

HHD Householder Application POB Discharge of Planning Obligation/s 

CLP 

CLASSM 

 

HAZ 

PN42 

 

PNT 

NMA 

WDN 

Certificate of Lawfulness Proposed 

Change of Use – Agriculture to 

Commercial 

Hazardous Substances Application 

Householder Application under Permitted 

Development legislation. 

Telecoms Prior Approval 

Non Material Amendment 

Withdrawn 

 

CLE 

CND 

PDET28 

PN56 

POROW 

TCA 

TPO 

 

FDO 

Certificate of Lawfulness Existing 

Discharge of Conditions 

Agricultural Prior Approval 

Change of Use Agriculture to Dwelling 

Creation or Diversion of Right of Way 

Works to Trees in a Conservation Area 

Works to Trees subject of a Tree 

Preservation Order 

Finally Disposed Of 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

 

Description 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

Description 

APP 

REF 

P1REQ 

P3APP 

P4APP 

Approve 

Refuse  

Prior Approval Required 

Prior Approval Approved 

Prior Approval Approved 

RNO 

ROB 

P2NRQ 

P3REF 

P4REF 

Raise no objection  

Raise Objection  

Prior Approval Not Required 

Prior Approval Refused 

Prior Approval Refused 

 

 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS 

Week Ending 8th November 2024 

 

  

Application Number.  

 

Ward. 

 

 Decision. 

 

 

1.  23/02282/CND Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 7 (Construction Environmental Method Statement) and Condition 9 

(Archaeology) of Planning Permission 22/00986/FUL. 

Land North Of Foxwood Close, Aston 

Mrs T Almeida 

 

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 5



DELGAT 
 

2.  24/00956/HHD Alvescot and Filkins APP 

  

Erection of glass house (amended description and plans) 

Home Farm House, Radcot Road, Grafton 

Mrs Emma Kirby 

 

 

3.  24/01865/HHD Brize Norton and Shilton APP 

  

(Amended Description) Erection of single storey rear extension 

Avalon Cottage, Manor Road, Brize Norton 

Mr Chris Gibson 

 

 

4.  24/01908/CM Brize Norton and Shilton RNO 

  

Development of the site to provide a two-storey community safety centre and smoke house 

training facility, with associated access, parking, training yard and landscaping 

Land At Grid Reference 428943 207650, Monahan Way, Carterton 

Mary Hudson 

 

 

5.  24/01956/FUL Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

  

Erection of a replacement dwelling with a detached garage building and associated works. 

Singe Farm, Akeman Street, Ramsden 

Mr Peter Williams 

 

 

6.  24/02020/HHD Bampton and Clanfield APP 

  

Demolition of existing conservatory, erection of single storey rear extension and associated 

works 

15 Talbot Fields, Bampton, Oxfordshire 

Charlotte Donohoe 

 

 

7.  24/02021/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Proposed single storey side and rear extensions 

Shepherds Gaze, West End, Chadlington 

Mrs Birdie Tallon 

 

 

8.  24/02075/FUL Brize Norton and Shilton APP 

  

Conversion of barn to create dwelling with alterations to internal layout, fenestration and 

doors, and provision of associated garden and parking facilities. (Retrospective). 

Long Barn 9 Sturt Farm Courtyard, Oxford Road 

Mr Burton 

 

 

Page 40



DELGAT 
 

9.  24/02076/FUL Brize Norton and Shilton APP 

  

Conversion of barn to create dwelling with alterations to internal layout, fenestration and 

doors, and provision of associated garden and parking facilities. (Retrospective) 

Courtyard Stables 6 Sturt Farm Courtyard, Oxford Road 

Mr Burton 

 

 

10.  24/02104/FUL Witney East APP 

  

Change of use of land to increase the domestic curtilage along with an increase to the height 

of the boundary fencing (part retrospective) 

37 Newland Mill, Witney, Oxfordshire 

Lyndsey Price 

 

 

11.  24/02127/CND Alvescot and Filkins APP 

  

Discharge of condition 4 (details of windows and doors) of Listed Building Consent 

23/00759/LBC 

The Old Brew House, Holwell, Burford 

Julie-Anne Edwards 

 

 

12.  24/02135/FUL Alvescot and Filkins APP 

  

Erection of a greenhouse 

Freelands Farm, Westwell, Burford 

Tymure Estate 

 

 

13.  24/02166/CND Witney East APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 7 (surface water drainage scheme), 8 (Construction Management 

Plan) and 11 (details of integrated bat roosting and nesting opportunities) of Planning 

Permission 24/00655/FUL 

111 Manor Road, Witney, Oxfordshire 

Mr Jonathan Pickering 

 

 

14.  24/02195/FUL Carterton South APP 

  

Erection of two storey and first floor extensions together with conversion of the attached 

garage to create additional living space. Works to include formation of additional off-street 

parking and readjusting the position of the garden wall to increase the domestic garden. 

73 Mayfield Close, Carterton, Oxfordshire 

Mr And Mrs A Rainey 

 

 

Page 41



DELGAT 
 

15.  24/02201/HHD Ducklington REF 

  

Erection of a self-contained single storey annex ancillary to main dwelling with associated 

works 

Pillar Box Cottage, Lew, Bampton 

Mr And Mrs David And Isobel Miller 

 

 

16.  24/02223/HHD North Leigh APP 

  

Replacement single storey side extension, reinstatement of ground floor window to south 

elevation 

Bridewell Farm, Wilcote Road, North Leigh 

P And L Chadlington 

 

 

17.  24/02224/LBC North Leigh APP 

  

Replacement single storey side extension, reinstatement of ground floor window to south 

elevation 

Bridewell Farm, Wilcote Road, North Leigh 

P And L Chadlington 

 

 

18.  24/02231/CND Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 4 (surface water drainage scheme) of Planning Permission 

21/03631/HHD 

14 Park Farm Place, Northmoor, Witney 

Mr and Mrs Rusher 

 

 

19.  24/02249/CND Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

  

Discharge of condition 6 (landscape scheme) of Planning Permission 24/00234/FUL 

The Stone Barn, High Street, Standlake 

Mr James Jennings 

 

 

20.  24/02258/FUL Witney Central APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Proposed replacement windows and doors (amended plans). 

81 High Street, Witney, Oxfordshire 

S childs 

 

 

Page 42



DELGAT 
 

21.  24/02272/CND Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 5 (lighting design strategy for biodiversity) of Planning Permission 

24/00234/FUL 

The Stone Barn, High Street, Standlake 

Mr James Jennings 

 

 

22.  24/02273/CND Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

  

Discharge of condition 7 (details of nesting opportunities for birds) of Planning Permission 

24/00234/FUL 

The Stone Barn, High Street, Standlake 

Mr James Jennings 

 

 

23.  24/02279/HHD Witney East APP 

  

Erection of a replacement garage to side elevation with living area in roof space, and rear 

single storey extension with associated works. 

18 The Crescent, Witney, Oxfordshire 

Ben Sydenham 

 

 

24.  24/02288/FUL Eynsham and Cassington APP 

  

Raise height of forecourt canopy from 4.2m to 5.1m between ground and underside of 

canopy. 

Eynsham Filling Station, Eynsham, Witney 

Motor Fuel Group Ltd 

 

 

25.  24/02293/HHD Witney West APP 

  

Erection of a porch and single storey rear extension 

11 Stanway Close, Witney, Oxfordshire 

Mr and Mrs Aston 

 

 

26.  24/02308/HHD Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

  

Erection of a garden building 

Swinbrook, New Yatt Lane, New Yatt 

Mr Martin Atkinson 

 

 

Page 43



DELGAT 
 

27.  24/02312/FUL Witney South APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Reconstruction of the chimney stack, repair works to the dormer windows and cheeks 

13 Market Square, Witney, Oxfordshire 

Emtec 

 

 

28.  24/02313/LBC Witney South APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Reconstruction of the chimney stack, repair works to the dormer windows and cheeks 

13 Market Square, Witney, Oxfordshire 

Emtec 

 

 

29.  24/02349/HHD Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of single storey rear extension 

Milburn Cottage, Delly Hill, Hailey 

Virginia Carter 

 

 

30.  24/02323/S73 Carterton North East APP 

  

Variation of condition 2 of permission 21/03210/FUL to allow changes to roof height and the 

addition of four first floor windows (part retrospective) 

11 Ventura Park, Broadshires Way, Carterton 

Mr Tim Adair 

 

 

31.  24/02350/HHD Carterton North West APP 

  

Additional Dormer to rear and extension to existing Dormer at front of property. Internal 

alterations to room layout. 

16 Burswin Road, Carterton, Oxfordshire 

Mr Sam Wearing 

 

 

32.  24/02364/FUL Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

  

Installation of a metal container unit to store equipment (Retrospective) 

Ramsden Playing Field, Akeman Street, Ramsden 

Ramsden Parish Council 

 

 

Page 44



DELGAT 
 

33.  24/02365/HHD Alvescot and Filkins APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Demolition of rear conservatory, replacement oak framed garden structure, loft conversion 

including addition of dormers and roof light, amendments to rear and side fenestration. 

Butlers Court Farm, Main Road, Alvescot 

Mr and Mrs McLennan 

 

 

34.  24/02387/HHD Witney West APP 

  

Proposed single storey side link extension and first floor extension over existing garage 

11 Donnington Close, Witney, Oxfordshire 

Mr & Mrs Quail 

 

 

35.  24/02403/HHD Witney West APP 

  

Installation of air source heat pump 

9 Chipmunk Drive, Witney, Oxfordshire 

Max Ricketts 

 

 

36.  24/02422/FUL Witney South APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Change of use of existing brewery to Class E use. 

Units 9-12,  Eagle Industrial Estate, Witney 

NWB Properties Ltd 

 

 

37.  24/02426/CND Witney East APP 

  

Discharge of condition 4 (details of bat roosting and nesting opportunities) of Planning 

Permission 21/02368/HHD 

31 Oxford Hill, Witney, Oxfordshire 

Mr James Benson 

 

 

38.  24/02467/CND Alvescot and Filkins APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of conditions 3 (schedule of materials), 4 (bat mitigation strategy) and 5 (lighting 

design strategy) of Planning Permission 23/03285/HHD 

The Granary, Filkins, Lechlade 

Mr and Mrs Colledge 

 

 

Page 45



DELGAT 
 

39.  24/02468/HHD Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Replacing an existing wooden Lean-to glasshouse with a powder coated aluminium Lean-to 

glasshouse sited on dwarf stone wall in keeping with existing stonework with in the property. 

Blackditch Farm, Blackditch, Stanton Harcourt 

Fuchs/Griffiths 

 

 

40.  24/02469/LBC Standlake, Aston and Stanton 

Harcourt 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

External alterations to include replacing an existing wooden Lean-to glasshouse with a 

powder coated aluminium Lean-to glasshouse sited on dwarf stone wall in keeping with 

existing stonework within the property. 

Blackditch Farm, Blackditch, Stanton Harcourt 

Fuchs/Griffiths 

 

 

41.  24/02475/HHD Witney Central APP 

  

Conversion of existing loft, including alterations to change hip roof to gable and insertion of 

two dormer windows and rooflights, to create additional living space. 

39 Springfield Oval, Witney, Oxfordshire 

Mr And Mrs Anya And Simon Fathollahzadeh-Aghdam And Engledew 

 

 

42.  24/02484/CND Eynsham and Cassington APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 2 (schedule of materials) of Listed Building Consent 24/00628/LBC 

26 Newland Street, Eynsham, Witney 

Mr & Mrs Relph 

 

 

43.  24/02490/FUL Ducklington APP 

  

Erection of an agricultural building 

Duttons Farm,  Lew Road, Curbridge 

Mr Julian Wade 

 

 

44.  24/02502/FUL Bampton and Clanfield REF 

  

Change of use from two holiday lets to two dwellings 

Old Farmhouse,  Burford Road, Black Bourton 

Mr Neil Wiffen 

 

 

Page 46



DELGAT 
 

45.  24/02523/HHD Witney South APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of detached garage to create ground and first floor living space 

112 The Crofts, Witney, Oxfordshire 

George Campbell 

 

 

46.  24/02537/HHD Witney South APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of single storey side and front extensions to replace existing conservatory and sheds 

17 Corndell Gardens, Witney, Oxfordshire 

Ms S Fletcher 

 

 

47.  24/02564/CND Ducklington APP 

  

Discharge of condition 4 (Construction Traffic Management Plan) of Planning Permission 

24/01070/FUL 

Ducklington Farm,  Course Hill Lane, Ducklington 

Nicola Jones 

 

 

48.  24/02591/CND Eynsham and Cassington APP 

  

Discharge of condition 13 (site investigation) of Planning Permission 20/00140/FUL 

Unit 1 Stanton Harcourt Road, Eynsham 

Mr Paul Tither 

 

 

49.  24/02600/CLE Ducklington APP 

  

Certificate of Lawfulness to confirm the lawful implementation of planning permission 

23/02035/S73 (variation of conditions 10 and 11 of planning permission 22/00788/FUL to 

allow changes to part of the approved surfacing from permeable block paving and decorative 

gravel to tarmac with a transition strip of granite setts). 

Curbridge Downs Farm, Burford Road, Minster Lovell 

Mr Walker 

 

 

50.  24/02599/CND Alvescot and Filkins APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of conditions 3 (schedule of materials), 4 (slate details), 5 (details of the windows 

and doors) and 6 (garage door materials) of Planning Permission 24/01699/HHD 

1 Lower Farm Cottages, Langford, Lechlade 

Mr Gordon Chambers 

 

 

Page 47



DELGAT 
 

51.  24/02612/HHD Carterton North East APP 

  

Replacement of existing conservatory with single storey extension 

37 Brizewood, Carterton, Oxfordshire 

Mr & Mrs M Stephens 

 

 

52.  24/02664/PN42 Eynsham and Cassington P2NRQ 

  

Erection of a single storey extension (8m x 2.3m height to eaves / 2.4m max height) 

Mill View, Cassington, Witney 

Mr N Rogers 

 

 

53.  24/02689/CLP Eynsham and Cassington REF 

  

Certificate of lawfulness (to change all existing white timber framed single glazed sash 

windows with dark bronze steel window frames and double glazing) 

Manor Farm, Eynsham Road, Cassington 

Amrit and Andrew Midha and Thomas 

 

 

 

Page 48



Lowlands Appeal Decisions 

 

1. 48 Black Bourton Road, Carterton, Oxfordshire, OX18 3HE 
 
Appeal Ref. APP/D3125/W/24/3344536 
 
WODC Ref. 23/02971/FUL 
 
Proposal: The erection of 9 proposed dwellings and associated external works.  
 
Decision: Allowed (no costs awarded).   

Page 49

Agenda Item 6

https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ViewCase.aspx?CaseID=3344536&CoID=0


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 Applications for Development
	5 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers
	6 Appeal Decisions

